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2Writing an RFP for a Talent Operating System



Writing Requests for Proposals, or RFPs, is part and parcel 
of purchasing software in any large business. It’s a necessary 
administrative step in the process of acquiring valuable solutions  
or services that need to be customized to your needs. And while it  
helps you find the best tool for the job, it’s also a complex exercise in 
stakeholder management with sometimes unclear guidelines.  

For Talent Acquisition teams especially, the process is challenging 
because of the spectrum of tasks that the hiring toolstack needs to 
address. There are tools and solutions for everything, from identifying 
leads an managing candidate data, to marketing to prospects on 
various channels, to managing applications and handing hires off  
to the rest of the Human Resources team. 

Given the breadth of available solutions, talent teams are usually 
best served by starting with a platform that enables all their recruiting 
activities–and the tools that manage them–to all talk to each other and 
sit in one single location. We call this a Talent Operating System. 

This guide is especially designed for talent teams looking to acquire 
such a technology, but it can be helpful with regards to any other sort 
of talent acquisition technology, from CRMs to recruitment marketing 
platforms to branding and customer journey management tools. 

Introduction
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Talent acquisition tools and platforms range from simple interview 
scheduling bots, to sophisticated resume screening software,  
to complex CRMs or Recruitment marketing platforms. Deciding what 
tool will fit best with the needs and constraints of your organization is a 
complex task.

If you are writing an RFP to buy a Talent Operating System, your goal 
is to receive detailed offers from different service providers and to be 
able to compare them. The cost of these solutions alone, if presented 
out of context, is not enough to make an informed decision. 

A Request for Proposal is a way to provide that context. It lets vendors:

• Understand your specific needs as a business

• Describe their solution in a way that is relevant to those needs  
and constraints

• Make a business offer, with a description of the proposed solution 
and services, as well as their overall cost

As you might be considering vastly different types of tools or levels of 
service for your needs, the RFP makes it possible to compare apples 
and oranges, so to speak, and make an informed decision. 

The way this RFP is presented to the vendors is entirely your choice, 
but the clearer and more detailed it is, the more easier it will be to 
answer it, and the more informed your decision will be. It can be a 
simple list of questions in a document, or a spreadsheet with separate 
tables for each module or section of the project.

Why write an RFP?
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Requesting an RFP can be an opportunity to start a relationship  
with the right vendor, and to get their support in setting up your  
Talent Acquisition tool stack. Start this relationship on the best foot  
by attending to every detail of the following process.

RFP Checklist

 F Align with internal stakeholders on the objective  
of the RFP process

 F Pre-screen potential vendors 

 F Draft and share the RFP

 F Review RFP answers 

 F Conclude the process and start on next steps

1. Align with internal stakeholders

The decision of buying a Talent Operating System is likely to involve 
more than just the Talent Acquisition leadership. Who will use the tool? 
Who will sign off on the budget for it? Who will ensure it conforms to 
the company’s legal and technical requirements?  
Each and every one of these individuals has questions about  
the potential new solution that the RFP can answer.

By identifying who these stakeholders are early on, and aligning with 
them on your expectations of the new tool, you can make the RFP 
process much more efficient. 
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2. Pre-screen potential vendors

This is a step focused on research and reflexion, on two fronts:

• Externally: by going through crowd review websites and analyst 
reports in the HR technology space, or by reaching out to Talent 
Acquisition experts to ask for suggestions about potential solutions.

• Internally: by determining what baseline requirements your  
potential vendor must meet, such a existing customers in your 
space, for example, or a proven ability to work at the scale of your  
hiring needs.

List the potential service providers that resulted from cross-referencing 
internal and external considerations. If you end up with too many 
options, tighten your requirements and cut the lowest-ranking 
solutions. 

You can also ask members of your team to schedule live 
demonstrations in case you still don’t have a good sense of what the 
different solutions on the market can do. This might help you shorten 
the list even more, or if not, it will give added depth to the RFP you are 
about to draft.
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3. Draft and share the RFP

The RFP should contain at least the following elements:

I. An overview of your company

In the introduction, list some general information such as the size of 
the company, the industry where you operate, and your position in the 
market. Include some information that is specific to your talent team, 
such as its size and composition, or its yearly hiring goals, for example. 

This is part of the context that will help the right vendors highlight 
how they are best adapted to your needs. Some companies might be 
more used to working with smaller teams, or be more flexible about 
developing custom products for their customers. 

II. An overview of the project

Give a short description of what you seek to achieve by acquiring this 
new platform, as agreed on with your internal stakeholders.  
Do you need to improve the efficiency of your workflows? Modernize 
your screening process? Implement a new recruiting strategy? 

Do not try to make this description technical and functional -  
that will come later. This is more about explaining your business 
objectives. Vendors see examples everyday of how their existing users 
achieve various business goals with these solutions, and might offer 
you unexpected insights on the subject. 
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III. Technical requirements

The research you have done up to this point should give you an idea  
of what the scope and the features of your new platform should be.

For this RFP to be effective in differentiating and comparing multiple 
platforms, it needs to give vendors the opportunity to meticulously 
describe their solution in an organized and logical way. Therefore,  
it makes sense to approach the drafting methodically, and not just by 
brainstorming and putting down ideas as they come. 

Start with general questions about what you require of the platform, 
then split each question into smaller and smaller items, and repeat  
the process until each line item is as granular as possible. If it makes 
more sense, you can do this by use case instead, or type of user,  
for example. 
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Good questions are detailed, preferably close-ended, offering  
multiple response options, and overall collectively exhaustive.  
Look at the examples below:
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Technical requirements are often thought to be only about the actual 
platform itself, the use cases it serves, the features and functionalities. 
However, the RFP process needs to enable a comparison of what 
comes before and after the using the platform as well, namely 
implementation and training, and ongoing support services. 

Implementation requirements might be at least partly technical, so you 
might want to involve the IT department in their development. Other 
aspects of implementation, such as planning, training for your team 
members, or any suggested processes to manage the introduction and 
adoption of a new tool in the TA organization should also be highlighted 
in the RFP, in this section or separately, depending on your preference.

The same goes for support services. Not all vendors have the same 
service offers, and it isn’t always clear how willing or able they are 
to adapt to your needs or standards. Separating these elements will 
also make it easier to understand the pricing structure of the overall 
offer tendered by the vendor, as they might offer different training and 
service packages. 
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IV. Other business requirements 

Requirements are not only technical. While the Talent Acquisition team 
has final ownership of what the platform’s features should be, and how 
it will be implemented, adopted and supported, there are other aspects 
of it that affect the broader organization.

How will the platform collect and store candidate data? Will it be 
compliant with privacy and data regulation in your region? Is the 
platform up to the security standards demanded by your industry or 
your company? Are their invoicing and payment terms acceptable to 
you? Make sure to reach out to include the Legal, IT, Finance and 
possibly Procurement departments while you are writing your RFP,  
as they might have specific requirements pertaining to their scope  
of responsibility. 

NB: For the RFP to actually be tailored to your team’s needs, you might need to 
disclose strategic company information. It is worth consulting with your legal 
department about the need for Non-Disclosure Agreements before sending out 
any documents to your selected vendors. 
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4. Review RFP answers

A well-designed RFP should make this last step fairly straightforward, 
and set you up for a final round of live demonstrations with the other 
stakeholders in this acquisition. It will enable you to assess the 
answers you receive from vendors on two level:

Objective scoring

By weighing the requirements according to their importance for  
your goals, then scoring each vendor on each separate requirement,  
you will obtain an objective ranking of your selected vendors.  
However, it is still worth going through an additional layer of  
subjective assessment.

Subjective assessment

Plan a quick review session with your team, or even with external 
stakeholders that can add value. Ask everyone if the RFP process 
surfaced questions that weren’t included in the requirements,  
or whether they would like to add new dimensions to the  
comparison process.

• Is one of the highest scoring vendor also the least reactive? Is there 
reason to worry about their dedication if they win the contract?

• Did the early demos lead to believe that some of the RFP answers 
are ambiguous or maybe misleading?

• Did one of the vendors offer services that you didn’t think to ask 
about, and is it worth sending a second round of questions to 
include these services in the RFP analysis?

• Are there reasons to believe that the highest scoring vendors so far 
won’t be a good culture fit?
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5. Conclude the process and start on next steps

Once you are down to two, three or even four vendors, it is time to 
schedule more in-depth presentations and live demonstrations,  
both with leadership teams and external stakeholders, and with the 
actual intended users of the platform. The demonstrations will help 
answer questions regarding:

• How knowledgeable the vendors are about your industry,  
your type of organization and the hiring challenges specific to you

• What proven results they enabled other companies to achieve, 
such as cost reductions, process efficiency improvement, and  
value creation

• What the daily use of the platform will look like, and what use cases  
it will serve.

Wrapping it up

A good RFP process is designed to create a partnership between you 
and the vendor or vendors of your choice. They can provide you with 
information about what technology is available on the market, and how 
this technology enables companies to achieve their strategic Talent 
goals. Keep in mind that their services are not limited to tools and 
platforms, and leverage what advice and industry expertise they are 
able to offer throughout the process.

Remember as well that, while you are drafting RFPs to choose the 
right vendor, you are also building a case internally to buy the right 
solution once you find it. Both processes must happen in parallel 
for the best results: to conclude the RFP process, you need your 
company’s sign-off on the acquisition of a Talent Operating System, 
and to obtain this sign-off, you need to make  a business case for such 
a solution, which partly means demonstrating that you have selected 
the best one for the job… through an RFP process.
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We have also put together two free resources to facilitate the  
process of finding and acquiring the right Talent Operating System for 
your organization. 

Making the Business Case for a CRM or Recruitment 
Marketing Platform

Making the case for a new solution goes beyond demonstrating the 
positive impact it will have on the bottom line of the organization.  
It also means understanding what drives the decisions of a host of 
different stakeholders.

This step-by-step guide contains checklists, frameworks, and 
suggested tactics to help you build the ultimate Business Case for your 
new solution. It’s the ultimate guidance on how to obtain backing from 
the rest of the organisation, and how to avoid some of the trickiest 
hurdles of any buying process.

You can find it here

A Detailed RFP Template for a Talent Engagement 
Platform

Modern Talent Acquisition teams manage a myriad of different 
workstreams to find the best talent: Identifying candidates, managing 
their data in a compliant manner, proactively engaging with them 
with various marketing campaigns, not to mention streamlining their 
progress throughout the hiring process once they decide to apply. 
Finding the right solution to manage these different workstreams is a 
complex exercise.

We built this ready-to-use RFP template to make it easier for Talent 
Acquisition teams to find the right tools for their needs. Tweak it to 
adapt to your specific needs, or simply share it with your selected 
vendors as is.

You can download it here

Resources to get you started
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https://s3-eu-west-1.amazonaws.com/beamerycdn/academy/making-the-business-case-ebook.pdf
https://s3-eu-west-1.amazonaws.com/beamerycdn/blog/Example+RFP+template+-+Final.xlsx
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Beamery’s mission is to be the Talent Operating System through which 
the world’s best companies acquire their greatest assets: their people.

Beamery’s Talent Operating System combines Talent CRM, Talent 
Marketing, Automated Compliance, and a Connected layer to legacy 
systems, which gives enterprises the tools they need to address 
modern talent solutions, from forecasting and planning, to employer 
branding, to recruitment operations and business transformation.   
With Beamery, companies can attract, identify and engage candidates 
on one unified platform, build relationships with top talent, and deliver 
better talent acquisition - at scale.

Founded in 2014 in London, Beamery is one of the leading UK 
technology companies and trusted by global organizations such as 
Continental, Zalando, Commvault, Grab and Balfour Beatty. Beamery 
has offices in London, Austin, and San Francisco.

“The best candidate experiences are powered by Beamery” .

For more information, visit the Beamery website, follow @BeameryHQ 
on Twitter, or email us at info@beamery.com.
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